
 
 

Castle House 
Great North Road 

Newark 
NG24 1BY 

 
Tel: 01636 650000 

www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 
 

Wednesday, 6 November 2019 

Chairman: Councillor Mrs R Crowe 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor R White 
 
Members of the Committee: 
 
Councillor Mrs K Arnold 
Councillor L Brazier 
Councillor Mrs B Brooks 
Councillor Mrs I Brown 
Councillor S Carlton 
Councillor M Cope 
Councillor P Harris 
 

 
 
Councillor R Jackson 
Councillor Mrs S Michael 
Councillor Mrs S Saddington 
Councillor I Walker 
Councillor K Walker 
Councillor Mrs Y Woodhead 

 
 

MEETING: General Purposes Commitee 
  

DATE: Thursday, 14 November 2019 at 6.00 pm 
  

VENUE: Castle House, Great North Road, Newark, 
Notts. NG24 1BY 

 

You are hereby requested to attend the above Meeting to be held at the time/place  
and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the  

business on the Agenda as overleaf. 
 
 

If you have any queries please contact Helen Brandham on helen.brandham@newark-
sherwooddc.gov.uk 01636 655248. 

 
 

http://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/


 



DRAFT AGENDA 
 

  Page Nos. 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interests from Members and Officers 
 

 

3.   Declaration of any Intention to Record the Meeting 
 

 

4.   Minutes of the Meeting Held on 5 September 2019 
 

4 - 7 

PART 1 - ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 
5.   Food and Beverage Concessions: Amendment to Prohibited Street 

Designation at the Wharf: Consultation Responses 
 

8 - 12 

6.   Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 
 

13 - 68 

7.   Department of Transport - Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Statistics 2019 
 

69 - 71 

8.   Briefing on Newark & Sherwood's Approach to the 'Fit & Proper' Test 
 

Verbal 
Report 

PART 2 - ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 
9.   General Purposes Forward Plan (November 2019 to October 2020) 

 
72 

PART 3 - STATISTICAL AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW ITEMS 
 
10.   Applications & Enforcement 

 
73 - 76 

PART 4 - EXEMPT AND CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 
 
11.   Exclusion of the Press and Public 

 
 

 To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 

12.   Urgency Item - Suspension of Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence 
 

77 - 136 



NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of General Purposes Commitee held in the Castle House, Great 
North Road, Newark, Notts. NG24 1BY on Thursday, 5 September 2019 at 6.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Mrs R Crowe (Chairman) 
Councillor R White (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor L Brazier, Councillor Mrs B Brooks, Councillor Mrs I Brown, 
Councillor S Carlton, Councillor M Cope, Councillor P Harris, Councillor 
R Jackson, Councillor Mrs S Michael, Councillor Mrs S Saddington, 
Councillor I Walker, Councillor K Walker and Councillor 
Mrs Y Woodhead 
 

ALSO IN 
ATTENDANCE: 
 

Councillor L Goff 

APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

Councillor Mrs K Arnold (Committee Member) 

 

8 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS 
 

 NOTED that no Member or Officer declared any interest pursuant to any statutory 
requirement in any matter discussed or voted upon at the meeting. 

 
9 DECLARATION OF ANY INTENTION TO RECORD THE MEETING 

 
 NOTED that an audio recording of the meeting was to be made by the Council. 

 
10 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 JUNE 2019 

 
 AGREED (unanimously) that the Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 June 2019 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

11 FOOD AND BEVERAGE CONCESSIONS: AMENDMENT TO PROHIBITED STREET 
DESIGNATION AT THE WHARF 
 

 The Committee considered the report presented by the Projects Officer – 
Commercialisation & Major Projects which sought Members’ approval to begin a 
formal process to amend the prohibited street designation of The Wharf to exclude 
the Wharf Car Park.   
 
The report set out that the Concessions Project identified opportunities to generate a 
commercial income from food and beverage licenses on Council owned land and 
noted the success of Phase One of the project at Sconce & Devon Park and Vicar 
Water Country Park.  Phase Two was to conduct a district wide review of potential 
locations that would be suitable for food and beverage concessions to maximise 
income generation for the project.  The proposals, reported at paragraph 3, noted 
that the Wharf was currently designated as a prohibited street for the purposes of 
street trading but that it was proposed to grant permission for a concession to 
operate from the Car Park on the site.  Opportunities for the concession would be 

Agenda Page 4

Agenda Item 4



advertised asking for expressions of interest in early 2020.  Details of how the 
successful party would be chosen and the management of the concession were 
detailed in paragraphed 4 of the report.  The timetable for the proposals was listed at 
paragraph 6. 
 
In considering the report Members queried whether any restrictions as to the type of 
concession would be applied.  The Projects Officer stated that careful consideration 
would be given to the type of concession to be sited on the car park, having regard to 
the surrounding businesses etc.  A Member queried whether a burger van would be 
sited there.  In response the Projects Officer advised that such a concession would not 
be sited on the Wharf Car Park but that it may be considered as part of the wider 
Concessions Project.   
 
AGREED (unanimously) that: 
 

(a) the commencement of formal process to amend the prohibited 
street designation of The Wharf to exclude The Wharf Car Park be 
approved; 

 
(b) the consultation timetable set out in paragraph 6.2 of the report be 

endorsed; and  
 
(c) a further report with consultation comments be brought to the 

Committee in November to seek a resolution to amend the existing 
prohibited street designation. 

 
12 REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 

 
 The Committee considered the report of the Director – Governance & Organisational 

Development which sought to inform Members of the statutory review of polling 
districts and polling places. 
 
It was reported that a review must be undertaken every four years and that the 
deadline for the latest review to have been completed was 31 January 2020.  
Paragraph 1.4 indicated that a further report would be presented to Committee on 14 
November 2019 with the consultation responses and a recommendation that 
Committee recommend a final scheme to full Council for approval. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the process to consult on polling districts and polling 

places be approved in accordance with the timetable. 
 

13 HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE REVIEWS 
 

 The Committee considered the report presented by the Business Manager – Public 
Protection in relation to the consultation responses from the trade to the proposals 
for a review of hackney carriage fares. 
 
The report set out the proposed fare increase and the methodology used to 
undertake the consultation.  The Business Manager stated that the response rate had 
been disappointing with only 20 responses being received from the 175 issued.  It was 

Agenda Page 5



now proposed that the public consultation would be undertaken.  The Chairman, Vice-
Chairman and Business Manager would be given delegated authority to determine the 
relevance of any objections raised.  If it was considered that no such responses had 
been made it was proposed that the new fares would be implemented on 21 October 
2019. 
 
In considering the matter a Member requested that the proposed fare increase advert 
also be placed in the Mansfield Chad as the residents of Ollerton and surrounding 
areas did not read the Newark Advertiser.  The Business Manager confirmed that it 
would be placed in both papers. 
 
A Member raised concerns as to the continuing issues with drivers who were not 
licensed within the District.  The Chairman and Business Manager both advised that 
legislation to resolve the matter remained outstanding and of the working protocols 
within the County to try to resolve the ongoing issues.   
 
AGREED (unanimously) that: 
 

(a) the advertising of the new Hackney Carriage Fares as set out in 
Appendix Two be approved; 

 
(b) the proposed implementation date of 21 October 2019 be approved; 

and 
 
(c) delegated authority be given to the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and 

Business Manager – Public Protection to determine the relevance of 
any objections raised. 

 
14 GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN (OCTOBER 2019 TO SEPTEMBER 

2020) 
 

 AGREED (unanimously) that: 
 

(a) the General Purposes Forward Plan be noted; and  
 

(b) the following two items be added: 
 

(i) Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (14.11.19); and 
(ii) Castlegate Taxi Rank Update (14.11.19) 

 

15 APPLICATIONS & ENFORCEMENT - APRIL TO JUNE 2019 
 

 The Committee considered the report presented by the Business Manager – Public 
Protection in relation to the activity and performance of the Licensing Team which 
included details of current ongoing enforcement issues.   
 

Information contained in the report related to the number of applications for grants 
and renewals of licences for Hackney Carriage; Private Hire; and Ambulance Drivers 
together with those for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles.  A note of ongoing 
enforcement activity was also listed with information as to what action had been 
taken to-date.  Also provided within the report was information relating to both street 
and house to house collections. 
 Agenda Page 6



In considering the report a Member raised the ongoing issues with licensed drivers at 
the Northgate Train Station and that some refused to take passengers if they only 
required a short journey.  Members agreed that it may prove beneficial to undertake 
some additional investigation and if possible some ‘mystery shopping’ activity to 
ensure compliance with licence conditions. 
 
Members also queried whether any complaints received in relation to licensed drivers 
were followed up.  The Business Manager advised that all complaints received 
resulted in follow up action and, if necessary, monitoring of the driver. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the report be noted. 
 

16 VERBAL UPDATE ON CASTLEGATE TAXI RANK 
 

 In response to the Chairman asking for an update on the latest position with the 
amendment to the hours of the Castlegate Taxi Rank, the Business Manager – Public 
Protection advised that he had been in contact with Nottinghamshire County Council’s 
Legal Services who were responsible for issuing the new Order to amend the 
commencement time to 18:00 hours as previously agreed by this Committee.  To-date 
he had not received a response.  He advised that he would present an update report 
to the next meeting of the Committee on 14 November 2019. 
 

17 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 That, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 of 
part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

18 26.06.19 - MINUTES OF HC/PH DRIVER'S SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 The Committee considered the exempt Minutes of the Hackney Carriage & Private 
Hire Driver’s Sub-Committee held on Wednesday, 26 June 2019.   
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the exempt Minutes be noted. 
 

19 SAFEGUARDING ISSUES REPORT 
 

 The Committee considered the report of the Director – Communities & Environment 
in relation to safeguarding issues as detailed in the report. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the report be noted. 
 

 
Meeting closed at 6.30 pm. 
 
 
 
Chairman 

Agenda Page 7



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 
14 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
FOOD AND BEVERAGE CONCESSIONS: AMENDMENT TO PROHIBITED STREET DESIGNATION AT 
THE WHARF: CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To report back to the Committee on the outcome of the consultation responses on the 

proposal to amend the prohibited street designation to exclude the Town Wharf Car Park 
from the existing designation to support phase two of the concessions project. 
 

2.0 Background Information 
 
2.1 The District Council’s Commercial Strategy sets out the principles for the Council to adopt 

an innovative and entrepreneurial approach that achieves positive annual financial 
contributions for the Council.   

 
2.2 The concessions project identifies opportunities to generate a commercial income from 

food and beverage licenses on Council land and supports the Council’s commercial 
ambitions and values of embodying a commercial and business-like approach to 
operational activity.  

 
2.3 One of the sites identified for phase two is the Town Wharf car park in Newark. The Wharf 

is currently designated as a prohibited street for the purposes of street trading and the 
parameter of the Town Wharf car park, is shown in Appendix A.  Street Trading is defined 
as the selling or exposing or offering for sale of any article (including a living thing) in any 
street under schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

 
2.4 The General Purposes Committee on 5 September 2019 passed a resolution to begin the 

formal process to amend the prohibited street designation of The Wharf Car Park.  This 
would exclude the Wharf car park as a prohibited street and enable the Council to licence 
food and beverage providers to operate for a financial return to the Council.  The proposed 
location for a concession at the Wharf car park will be behind the pay and display machines 
and therefore will not impose on an existing car parking space.  The formal process 
requires the Council to undertake a 28 day public consultation (including mandatory 
consultation with the Police and local Highways and a public notice in the newspaper). 

 
3.0 Proposals 
 
3.1 Public consultation was open for comments from 12 September to 10 October 2019 with a 

public notice in the Newark Advertiser (Appendix B) and notification issued to 
Nottinghamshire Police, Via East Midlands (Highways) and Newark Town Council. 

 
3.2 Newark Town Council responded to the consultation with No Objections to the proposals. 

No other representations or comments have been received on the proposal.  
 
 
 

Agenda Page 8

Agenda Item 5



3.3  This proposal is to only exclude the Wharf Car Park from the prohibited street designation 
at The Wharf. The remainder of the Wharf would remain within the existing prohibited 
street designation. This would seek to maintain a form of regulation from unauthorised 
traders. 

 
4.0 Proposed Timetable  
 
4.1  The full process and indicative timescales are included below:- 
 

Activity Timescales 

Feedback on comments and responses on the Consultation to the 
General Purposes Committee with a recommendation to pass the 
resolution to exclude the Town Wharf Car Park from the prohibited 
street designation at The Wharf. 
 

14 Nov 2019 

A Public Notice stating the resolution has been passed and that the 
Town Wharf Car Park has been excluded from the prohibited 
designation (adverts to be placed across two consecutive weeks) 
 

Week 1: 21 Nov 2019 
Week 2: 28 Nov 2019 

The Town Wharf Car Park is now excluded from the prohibited street 
designation (28 days after the final public notice has been placed) 
 

26 Dec 2019 

Advertise the concession opportunity including press release, application 
form to be uploaded to Council Website 
 

Jan 2020 – Feb 2020 

Concession to start on site Apr 2020 

 
5.0  Equalities Implications  
 
5.1 An EQIA checklist been completed which has determined that there are no equalities 

implications. 
 
6.0 Financial Implications – FIN19-20/5977 
 
6.1 There is a one off cost associated with placing a public notice in the newspaper.  The public 

notice for the consultation comments described in 3.1 cost approximately £106.  There will 
be a further cost of approximately £215 for two public notices. 

 
6.2 The costs for the public notices will be funded from the Commercialisation and Major 

Projects Team and will be refunded from the concession income.  Utilising the knowledge 
and experience from phase 1, it is expected the income generation from the Wharf Car 
Park to be approx. £4k-£6k per annum.  

 
7.0  Community Plan – Alignment to Objectives 
 
7.1 This proposal supports the Council objective ‘Generate more income, improve value for 

money and increase residents' satisfaction with the Council’.  This proposal will also 
provide a new source of income for the Council will contribute to funding the Council’s 
aspirations as detailed within the Community Plan 2019-2023. 

 
Agenda Page 9



8.0 Comment of Director 
 
8.1  This proposal supports the commercial concessions project which aims to generate new 

revenue through offering concessions on Council owned sites and demonstrates the 
Council’s commercial vision as set out in the Council’s Commercial strategy which was 
approved by Council in 2017.  

 
9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that: 
 

a) a resolution be passed to amend the prohibited street designation of The Wharf to 
exclude The Wharf Car Park and; 
 

b) the approach and timeline for operating a food and beverage concession on the 
Wharf Car Park as outlined in 4.1 of the report be approved. 
 

Reason for Recommendations 
 

To support the progression of phase 2 of the concessions project.  
 
Background Papers 
 
General Purposes Committee – Food & Beverage Concessions: Amendment to Prohibited Street 
Designation at the Wharf (5 September 2019) 

 
For further information please contact Natalie Cook, Projects Officer, Commercialisation & Major 
Projects Business Unit on ext 5275. 
 
Sanjiv Kohli 
Deputy Chief Executive/Director - Resources 

Agenda Page 10



APPENDIX A 
The Wharf and The Town Wharf Car Park  
 

 
 

 

Agenda Page 11



 

APPENDIX B 
Public Notice in Newark Advertiser (Published on 12 September 2019) 
 

A
genda P

age 12



 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE  
14 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To consider the representations received during the Review of Polling Districts and Polling 

Places and to recommend a final scheme to the Council for approval. 
 
2.0 Background Information 
 
2.1 Section 16 of the Electoral Administration Act 2006 introduced a number of changes to the 

Representation of the People Act 1983 in respect of the way in which reviews of polling 
districts and polling places must be carried out. 

 
2.2 By 31 January 2020, every relevant authority must have undertaken and completed a 

review of all the polling districts and polling places in its area. 
 
2.3 The General Purposes Committee at its meeting held on 5 September 2019 agreed the 

following timetable: 
 

 Publication of notice and consultation document – consultation opened 9 September 
2019 

 Closing date for representations 25 October 2019 

 Report on representations to General Purposes Committee on 14 November 2019 - 
General Purposes to recommend a final scheme to Full Council on 17 December 2019 

 Full Council to agree final scheme on 17 December 2019 
 
3.0 Consultation 
 
3.1 At the closing date for representations on 25 October 2019, only two representations had 

been received. These were from Councillors Brazier and Cumberlidge in respect of the 
Ollerton Ward and specifically the use of Unit 8 at Beacon Court for polling District PE.  
Both Members expressed concern about the suitability of the polling station given the poor 
lighting and heating and facilities for staff, however currently there were no suitable 
alternative venues available within that polling district.  

 
3.2 Given the lack of alternative venues the Electoral Registration Officer/Returning Officer 

considers the premises should be continued to be used until a replacement can be found, 
as it is considered necessary to have a polling station available in the polling district.  

 
3.3 The Electoral Registration Officer/Returning Officer also sought views on the use of 

Hawton Church to serve electors in polling district GG but no representations had been 
received.  

 
3.4 The Committee are invited to consider the representations with a view to proposing a final 

scheme which can be recommended to the Full Council at their meeting to be held on 17 
December 2019. 

 
Agenda Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

3.5 The consultation document and polling district scheme are attached as an Appendix to the 
report.  

 
4.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the proposals, as set out in the Appendix to the report, subject to any revisions put 
forward by the Committee, be recommended to Full Council for approval. 

 
Background Papers 
 
Responses received in respect of the consultation 

Full Consultation Document 
 
For further information please contact Nigel Hill on Ext 5243 
 
Karen White 
Director – Governance & Organisational Development 
 

 
 

Agenda Page 14



APPENDIX 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Newark & Sherwood District Council 
Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2019 

 
 

Consultation Document 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 2019 

Agenda Page 15



Background 
 
Section 16 of the Electoral Administration Act 2006 introduced a number of changes to the Representation 
of the People Act 1983 in respect of the way in which reviews of polling districts and polling places must be 
carried out. 
 
The most important change to note is that by 31 January 2020 every relevant authority must have 
undertaken and completed a review of all the polling districts and polling places in its area. This 
consultation document has been produced as part of the review in the Newark and Sherwood area. 
 
The last review of polling districts and places was completed in December 2014. 
 

Definitions 
 
Polling Districts 
 
A polling district is a geographical area created by the division of a constituency or local government area 
such as a ward. 
 
As the relevant authority, the District Council is responsible for deciding the boundaries of polling districts 
and must therefore seek to ensure that all electors in the area, have reasonable facilities for voting as are 
practicable in the circumstances. 
 
In England, each parish must be a separate polling district, although larger parishes can be divided into two 
or more districts. A parish must not be in a polling district which has a part of a different parish within it, or 
any un-parished part of the local authority within it. 
 
Polling Places 
 
A polling place is a geographical location in which a polling station is situated. Although it is usual to have 
one polling station in one polling place, there are situations where several polling stations are located in 
one polling place.  
 
As the relevant authority, the Council is responsible for determining polling places and must therefore 
make sure that the polling places are accessible to all electors and must take into account the accessibility 
needs of disabled people. 
 
Polling Station 
 
A polling station is the actual area where the process of voting takes place and must be located in the 
polling place designated for the particular polling district. The polling station may consist of a whole room 
or in certain circumstances a designated area within a room or building. 
 
The Returning Officer (Acting, Deputy or Local) for the particular election is responsible for providing a 
sufficient number of polling stations and allotting electors to those polling stations.  

Agenda Page 16



The Review Process 
 
The timetable for the review is set out below: - 
 

Publication of notice and consultation document – consultation opens Monday 9 September 2019 

Closing date for representations Friday 25 October 2019 

Report on representations to General Purposes Committee 
General Purposes to recommend a final scheme to the Full Council 

Thursday 14 November 2019 

Full Council to agree final scheme Tuesday 17 December 2019 

 
The publication of this consultation document represents the first stage of the review. The existing 
schedule of polling districts and polling places are detailed in this document. 
 
You are invited to comment on the existing scheme, and if you feel it appropriate you may suggest changes 
to polling district boundaries or alternative proposals for polling places. 
 
All representations will be published on the Council’s website at https://www.newark-
sherwooddc.gov.uk/vote/latestnews/. Any representations you wish to make should be submitted by 
Friday 25 October 2019. 
 
All representations should be made by email to: voting@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk or by post to: - 
 
Electoral Services 
Newark & Sherwood District Council 
Castle House 
Great North Road 
Newark 
NG24 1BY  

Agenda Page 17

https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/vote/latestnews/
https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/vote/latestnews/
mailto:voting@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk


District Ward Summary: Balderton North & Coddington 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 7 (EA, EB, EC, ED, EE, EF and EG) 
Number of Polling Places 5 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 3216 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

339 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 5337 
 
Polling District Information: EA 
Parish Parish of Balderton - Rowan Ward 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place John Hunt Primary & Nursery School, London Road, BALDERTON, NG24 

3BN 
Polling Place comments  Used the old nursery building for Newark Parliamentary by-election on 

5 June 2014 and proposed to continue to use this for future elections.  
This enables the school to remain open. This building, which is adjacent 
to the school, has limited car parking facilities and access for all 
electors. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 907 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

102 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1434 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

264 

Number of Voters in Person 1170 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: EB 
Parish Newark Town - East Ward (Beacon Ward for 02/05/19 elections) 
County Division Newark East 
Polling Place Balderton Village Centre, Coronation Street, Balderton, NEWARK, NG24 

3BD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and excellent access for all 

electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 2 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

1 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

0 

Number of Voters in Person 2 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 18



 
Polling District Information: EC 
Parish Parish of Balderton - North Ward 
County Division Newark East 
Polling Place Balderton Village Centre, Coronation Street, Balderton, NEWARK, NG24 

3BD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and excellent access for all 

electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 770 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

79 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1335 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

274 

Number of Voters in Person 1061 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in EB) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: ED 
Parish Parish of Balderton - Milton Ward 
County Division Newark West 
Polling Place Balderton Village Centre, Coronation Street, Balderton, NEWARK, NG24 

3BD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and excellent access for all 

electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 161 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

11 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 286 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

40 

Number of Voters in Person 246 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in EB) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: EE 
Parish Parish of Balderton - North Ward 
County Division Newark East 
Polling Place St Giles Church Hall, Main Street, Balderton, NEWARK, NG24 3LN 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 562 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

57 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 849 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

125 

Number of Voters in Person 724 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 19



 
Polling District Information: EF 
Parish Parish of Coddington 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Coddington Community Centre, Beckingham Road, Coddington, 

NEWARK, NG24 2TP 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities, however a complaint was 

raised by a District Councillor following the European election and 
Parliamentary by-election in 2014 as parents of pupils at Coddington 
Primary School were using the car park when taking and collecting 
children from school. The school has been contacted and they will 
advise parents for future elections not to use Coddington Community 
Centre car park when an election is taking place.  
The building has good access for all electors. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 692 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

71 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1210 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

215 

Number of Voters in Person 995 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: EG 
Parish Parish of Barnby-in-the-Willows 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Barnby-In-The Willows Village Hall, Barnby-In-The-Willows, NEWARK,  

NG24 2SD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  

Disabled access is separate but clearly signed.  
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 122 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

18 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 221 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

40 

Number of Voters in Person 181 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
 

Agenda Page 20



District Ward Summary: Balderton South 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 3 (FA, FB and FC) 
Number of Polling Places 2 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 2593 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

516 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 3933 
 
Polling District Information: FA 
Parish Parish of Balderton - South Ward 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place William Ghent House, Gibson Crescent, Balderton, NEWARK, NG24 3EB 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1315 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

127 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2273 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

365 

Number of Voters in Person 1908 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: FB 
Parish Newark Town - South Ward (Devon Ward for 02/05/19 elections) 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place William Ghent House, Gibson Crescent, Balderton, NEWARK, NG24 3EB 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 362 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

309 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 82 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

12 

Number of Voters in Person 70 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into one of the polling stations in FA) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: FC 
Parish Parish of Balderton - South Ward 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place St Giles Church Hall, Main Street, Balderton, NEWARK, NG24 3LN 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 916 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

80 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1578 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

263 

Number of Voters in Person 1315 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 21



District Ward Summary: Beacon 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 5 (AA, AA1, AB, AC and AD) 
Number of Polling Places 3 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 4448 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

684 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 6742 
 
Polling District Information: AA 
Parish Newark Town – Beacon Ward 
County Division Newark East 
Polling Place Charles Street Methodist Church, Charles Street, NEWARK, NG24 1RN 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors.   
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1847 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

315 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2629 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

440 

Number of Voters in Person 2189 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: AA1 
Parish Balderton - North Ward 
County Division Newark East 
Polling Place Charles Street Methodist Church, Charles Street, NEWARK, NG24 1RN 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors.   
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 0 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

0 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 0 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

0 

Number of Voters in Person 0 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into one of the polling stations in AA) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: AB 
Parish Newark Town - Magnus Ward 
County Division Newark West 
Polling Place Charles Street Methodist Church, Charles Street, NEWARK, NG24 1RN 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors.   
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 284 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

78 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 301 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

63 

Number of Voters in Person 238 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into one of the polling stations in AA) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 22



 
Polling District Information: AC 
Parish Newark Town – Beacon Ward 
County Division Newark East 
Polling Place Coddington Community Centre, Beckingham Road, Coddington, 

NEWARK, NG24 2TP 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities, however a complaint was 

raised by a District Councillor following the European election and 
Parliamentary by-election in 2014 as parents of pupils at Coddington 
Primary School were using the car park when taking and collecting 
children from school. The school has been contacted and they will 
advise parents for future elections not to use Coddington Community 
Centre car park when an election is taking place.  
The building has good access for all electors. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1289 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

116 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2301 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

424 

Number of Voters in Person 1877 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: AD 
Parish Newark Town – Magnus Ward 
County Division Newark West 
Polling Place Magnus Church Of England Academy, Earp Avenue, NEWARK, NG24 

4AB 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  

The old Caretakers bungalow was used for Newark By- election in June 
2014 and is proposed to be used for all future elections. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1028 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

175 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1511 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

256 

Number of Voters in Person 1255 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 23



District Ward Summary: Bilsthorpe 
Parliamentary Constituency Sherwood 
Number of Polling Districts 3 (NA, NB and NC) 
Number of Polling Places 2 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1632 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

193 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2673 
 
Polling District Information: NA 
Parish Parish of Bilsthorpe 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Bilsthorpe Village Hall, Cross Street, BILSTHORPE, NG22 8QY  
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1126 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

158 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1774 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

273 

Number of Voters in Person 1501 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: NB 
Parish Parish of Rufford - Mickledale Ward 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Bilsthorpe Village Hall, Cross Street, BILSTHORPE, NG22 8QY  
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 80 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

4 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 137 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

37 

Number of Voters in Person 100 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in NB) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: NC 
Parish Parish of Bilsthorpe 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Building To Rear Of Copper Beech, Kirklington Road, Bilsthorpe, 

NEWARK, NG22 8SS 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 426 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

31 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 762 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

149 

Number of Voters in Person 613 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 Agenda Page 24



 
District Ward Summary: Boughton 

Parliamentary Constituency Sherwood 
Number of Polling Districts 3 (QA, QB and QC) 
Number of Polling Places 3 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1445 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

171 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2398 
 
Polling District Information: QA 
Parish Ollerton & Boughton Town – Boughton Ward 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place The Dukeries Young Peoples Centre, Main Road, BOUGHTON, NG22 9JE 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 716 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

115 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1118 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

195 

Number of Voters in Person 923 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: QB 
Parish Parish of Kirton 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Room At Kirton Hall Farm, Main Street, KIRTON, NG22 9LP 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 131 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

12 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 236 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

40 
 

Number of Voters in Person 196 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: QC 
Parish Parish of Walesby 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Walesby Village Hall, New Hill, WALESBY, NG22 9PB 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 598 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

44 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1044 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

221 

Number of Voters in Person 823 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 Agenda Page 25



District Ward Summary: Bridge 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 4 (BA, BB, BC and BD) 
Number of Polling Places Three 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 3469 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

722 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 4944 
 
Polling District Information: BA 
Parish Newark Town – Bridge Ward 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Bishop Alexander Primary School, Wolsey Road, NEWARK, NG24 2BQ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  

There is no ramp, but alternative disabled access is available and 
signed.  

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 627 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

83 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 999 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

141 

Number of Voters in Person 858 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: BB 
Parish Newark Town – Bridge Ward 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Bridge Community Centre, Lincoln Road, NEWARK, NG24 2DQ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1308 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

212 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2019 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

333 

Number of Voters in Person 1686 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 26



 
Polling District Information: BC 
Parish Newark Town - Sleaford Ward 
County Division Newark East 
Polling Place Sherwood Avenue Bowling Pavilion, Sherwood Avenue, NEWARK 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors.   
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 706 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

130 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1060 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

173 

Number of Voters in Person 887 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: BD 
Parish Newark Town – Bridge Ward 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place 7th Newark Scout Group Hall, Lovers Lane, NEWARK, NG24 1HZ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  

There is no ramp, but alternative disabled access is available and 
signed.   

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 828 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

297 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 866 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

129 

Number of Voters in Person 737 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 27



District Ward Summary: Castle 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 2 (CA and CB) 
Number of Polling Places 2 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 2234 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

659 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2597 
 
Polling District Information: CA 
Parish Newark Town – Castle Ward 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place 7th Newark Scout Group Hall, Lovers Lane, NEWARK, NG24 1HZ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  

There is no ramp, but alternative disabled access is available and 
signed.   

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 840 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

327 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 812 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

169 

Number of Voters in Person 643 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: CB 
Parish Newark Town – Castle Ward 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Holy Trinity Community and Partnership Centre, Boundary Road, 

Newark, NG24 4AU 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

Consultation with members in June 2018: Venue changed from Christ 
Church Infant School, Victoria Street, as no longer available for us to 
use as a polling place. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1394 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

332 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1785 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

317 

Number of Voters in Person 1468 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 28



District Ward Summary: Collingham 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 13 (UA, UB, UC, UD, UE, UF, UG, UH, UI, UJ, UK, UL and UM) 
Number of Polling Places 8 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 2680 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

286 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 4642 
 
Polling District Information: UA 
Parish Parish of Collingham 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Collingham War Memorial Hall, Collingham, NEWARK, NG23 7LB 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1495 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

182 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2410 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

419 

Number of Voters in Person 1991 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: UB 
Parish Parish of Winthorpe & Langford – Winthorpe Ward 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Winthorpe Village Hall, Gainsborough Road, Winthorpe, NEWARK, 

NG24 2NN 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 299 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

23 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 552 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

86 

Number of Voters in Person 466 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 29



 
Polling District Information: UC 
Parish Parish of Winthorpe & Langford – Langford Ward 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Winthorpe Village Hall, Gainsborough Road, Winthorpe, NEWARK, 

NG24 2NN 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 41 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

7 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 75 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

11 

Number of Voters in Person 64 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in UB) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: UD 
Parish Parish of Holme (Meeting) 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Winthorpe Village Hall, Gainsborough Road, Winthorpe, NEWARK, 

NG24 2NN 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 

There is no accessible building available to use as a polling station in the 
Parish of Holme. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 39 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

5 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 78 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

12 

Number of Voters in Person 66 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in UB) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: UE 
Parish Parish of South Scarle (Meeting) 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place South Scarle Community Centre, South Scarle, NEWARK, NG23 7JH 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 86 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

9 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 171 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

21 

Number of Voters in Person 150 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 30



 
Polling District Information: UF 
Parish Parish of Besthorpe (Meeting) 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Besthorpe Trinity Hall, Low Road, Besthorpe, NEWARK, NG23 7HJ 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 93 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

6 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 174 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

27 

Number of Voters in Person 147 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: UG 
Parish Parish of Girton (Meeting) 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Girton Village Hall, High Street, Girton, NEWARK, NG23 7JA 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors (ramp 

in place for disabled access). 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 62 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

5 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 111 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

14 

Number of Voters in Person 97 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: UH 
Parish Parish of Spalford (Meeting) 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Girton Village Hall, High Street, Girton, NEWARK, NG23 7JA 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors (ramp 

in place for disabled access). 
Room at Chapel House was previously used as a polling place, but no 
longer available for use as the previous owners have sold the property.  
No alternative venues in the Parish. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 41 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

5 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 73 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

18 

Number of Voters in Person 55 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 31



 
Polling District Information: UI 
Parish Parish of North Clifton (Meeting) 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place South Clifton Coronation Hall, South Clifton, NEWARK, NG23 7BG 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

Consultation with members prior to the May 2017 election: Venue 
changed from Room At Hall Farm, North Clifton, Newark, NG23 7AP, as 
no longer available for us to use as a polling place. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 79 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

7 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 152 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

16 

Number of Voters in Person 136 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: UJ 
Parish Parish of South Clifton 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place South Clifton Coronation Hall, South Clifton, NEWARK, NG23 7BG 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 133 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

14 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 266 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

39 

Number of Voters in Person 227 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in UI) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: UK 
Parish Parish of Thorney 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place St Helens Church, Thorney, NEWARK, NG23 7BS 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 113 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

9 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 210 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

22 

Number of Voters in Person 188 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 32



 
Polling District Information: UL 
Parish Parish of Harby 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Harby Village Hall, High Street, HARBY, NG23 7EQ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 150 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

9 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 273 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

36 

Number of Voters in Person 237 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: UM 
Parish Parish of Wigsley (Meeting) 
County Division Collingham 
Polling Place Harby Village Hall, High Street, HARBY, NG23 7EQ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

There is no accessible building available to use as a polling station in the 
Parish of Wigsley. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 49 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

5 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 97 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

19 

Number of Voters in Person 78 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in UL) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 33



District Ward Summary: Devon 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 5 (DA, DB, DC, DD and DE) 
Number of Polling Places 5 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 4365 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

607 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 6694 
 
Polling District Information: DA 
Parish Newark Town – Castle Ward 
County Division Newark West 
Polling Place Thomas Mann Pavilion, Between 89  91 Valley Prospect, NEWARK, 

NG24 4QN 
Polling Place comments  The building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 528 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

47 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 905 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

206 

Number of Voters in Person 699 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: DB 
Parish Newark Town – Devon Ward 
County Division Newark West 
Polling Place Hawtonville Community Centre, St Marys Gardens, NEWARK, NG24 4JQ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1461 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

196 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2277 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

358 

Number of Voters in Person 1919 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 34



 
Polling District Information: DC 
Parish Newark Town – Devon Ward 
County Division Newark West 
Polling Place The Sir Donald Bailey Academy, Bailey Road, Newark, NG24 4EP  
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors 

(ramp in place for disabled access). 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1030 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

140 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1503 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

225 

Number of Voters in Person 1278 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: DD 
Parish Newark Town – Devon Ward 
County Division Newark West 
Polling Place Cleveland Square Community Centre, Carswell Close, NEWARK, NG24 

4HW 
Polling Place comments  This building has car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 718 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

94 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1156 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

164 

Number of Voters in Person 992 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: DE 
Parish Newark Town – Devon Ward 
County Division Newark West 
Polling Place Castle & Falcon Public House, 10 London Road, NEWARK, NG24 1TW 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 628 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

130 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 853 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

131 

Number of Voters in Person 722 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
 

Agenda Page 35



District Ward Summary: Dover Beck 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark (only exception is IG in Sherwood) 
Number of Polling Districts 7 (IA, IB, IC, ID, IE, IF and IG) 
Number of Polling Places 6 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1360 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

145 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2520 
 
Polling District Information: IA 
Parish Parish of Gunthorpe 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Gunthorpe Village Hall, Davids Lane, GUNTHORPE, NG14 7EW 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 343 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

40 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 582 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

93 

Number of Voters in Person 489 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: IB 
Parish Parish of Caythorpe 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Caythorpe War Memorial Hall, CAYTHORPE, NG14 7EF 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 122 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

11 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 227 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

55 

Number of Voters in Person 172 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: IC 
Parish Parish of Hoveringham 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Hoveringham Village Hall, Gonalston Lane, HOVERINGHAM, NG14 7JM 
Polling Place comments  This building has some car parking facilities (six spaces) and access for 

all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 143 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

15 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 283 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

29 

Number of Voters in Person 254 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 

Agenda Page 36



 
Polling District Information: ID 
Parish Parish of Gonalston 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Hoveringham Village Hall, Gonalston Lane, HOVERINGHAM, NG14 7JM 
Polling Place comments  This building has some car parking facilities (six spaces) and access for 

all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 40 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

2 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 89 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

20 

Number of Voters in Person 69 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in IC) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: IE 
Parish Parish of Thurgarton 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Thurgarton Village Hall, Bleasby Road, THURGARTON, NG14 7FW 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 198 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

22 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 387 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

64 

Number of Voters in Person 323 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: IF 
Parish Parish of Epperstone 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Epperstone Village Hall, Gonalston Lane, Epperstone, NOTTINGHAM, 

NG14 6AY 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 244 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

22 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 456 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

84 

Number of Voters in Person 372 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 37



 
Polling District Information: IG 
Parish Parish of Oxton 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Oxton Village Hall, Main Street, Oxton, SOUTHWELL, NG25 0SA 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 270 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

33 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 496 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

75 

Number of Voters in Person 421 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 38



District Ward Summary: Edwinstowe & Clipstone 
Parliamentary Constituency Sherwood 
Number of Polling Districts 5 (OA, OB, OC, OD and OE) 
Number of Polling Places 3 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 5238 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

979 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 8215 
 
Polling District Information: OA 
Parish Parish of Clipstone – Clipstone Village Ward 
County Division Sherwood Forest 
Polling Place Clipstone Village Hall, Church Road, CLIPSTONE, NG21 9DF 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1541 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

225 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2488 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

382 

Number of Voters in Person 2106 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: OB 
Parish Parish of Clipstone – Cavendish Ward 
County Division Sherwood Forest 
Polling Place Clipstone Village Hall, Church Road, CLIPSTONE, NG21 9DF 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1039 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

448 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1330 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

265 

Number of Voters in Person 1065 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: OC 
Parish Parish of Kings Clipstone 
County Division Sherwood Forest 
Polling Place Clipstone Village Hall, Church Road, CLIPSTONE, NG21 9DF 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 152 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

11 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 275 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

88 

Number of Voters in Person 187 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in OB) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 39



 
Polling District Information: OD 
Parish Parish of Edwinstowe 
County Division Sherwood Forest 
Polling Place Abbey Road Community Centre, 25 Abbey Road, Edwinstowe, 

MANSFIELD, NG21 9LQ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 844 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

108 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1378 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

272 

Number of Voters in Person 1106 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: OE 
Parish Parish of Edwinstowe 
County Division Sherwood Forest 
Polling Place Edwinstowe Village Hall, Mansfield Road, EDWINSTOWE, NG21 9NJ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1662 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

187 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2744 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

534 

Number of Voters in Person 2210 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 40



District Ward Summary: Farndon & Fernwood 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 12 (GA, GB, GC, GD, GE, GF, GG, GH, GI, GJ, GK and GL) 
Number of Polling Places 8 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 3132 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

485 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 5093 
 
Polling District Information: GA 
Parish Parish of Farndon 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Farndon Memorial Hall, Marsh Lane, Farndon, NEWARK, NG24 3SZ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1151 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

92 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1941 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

362 

Number of Voters in Person 1579 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: GB 
Parish Parish of East Stoke & Thorpe - East Stoke Ward 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place East Stoke W I Hall, School Lane, East Stoke, NEWARK, NG23 5QL 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and some access difficulties, as 

we are unable to build a disabled access ramp because the contours of 
the building would make it too steep. However, there are no alternative 
places within the Parish. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 73 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

10 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 120 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

18 

Number of Voters in Person 102 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 41



 
Polling District Information: GC 
Parish Parish of East Stoke & Thorpe – Thorpe Ward 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place East Stoke W I Hall, School Lane, East Stoke, NEWARK, NG23 5QL 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and some access difficulties, as 

we are unable to build a disabled access ramp because the contours of 
the building would make it too steep. However, there are no alternative 
places within the Parish. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 30 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

1 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 67 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

10 

Number of Voters in Person 57 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in GB) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: GD 
Parish Parish of Elston 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Elston Village Hall, Elston, NEWARK, NG23 5NP 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities (adjacent to the building) 

and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 300 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

33 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 557 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

86 

Number of Voters in Person 471 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: GE 
Parish Parish of Syerston (Meeting) 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Syerston Village Hall, Moor Lane, SYERSTON, NG23 5NB 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors.   
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 79 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

8 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 147 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

31 

Number of Voters in Person 116 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 42



 
Polling District Information: GF 
Parish Newark Town - South Ward (Devon Ward for 02/05/19 elections) 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place The Sir Donald Bailey Academy, Bailey Road, NEWARK, NG24 4EP 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors 

(ramp in place for disabled access). 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 29 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

27 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

0 

Number of Voters in Person 2 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in DC – Devon Ward) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: GG 
Parish Parish of Hawton 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place All Saints Church, HAWTON, NG24 3RN 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors 

(ramp in place for disabled access).  
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 32 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

2 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 67 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

9 

Number of Voters in Person 56 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation Due to issues with this polling place from the 2019 elections, we would 

welcome any suggestions for an alternative venue. Otherwise, the only 
alternative would be for this polling district area to vote at Farndon 
Memorial Hall, Marsh Lane, Farndon, NEWARK, NG24 3SZ 

 
Polling District Information: GH 
Parish Parish of Fernwood 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place Fernwood Village Hall, Rubys Avenue, Fernwood, NEWARK, NG24 3RS 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1322 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

290 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1989 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

325 

Number of Voters in Person 1664 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation Due to issues with this polling place from the 2019 elections, we are 

intending to add an additional station at this venue from the next 
election held. 

 

Agenda Page 43



 
Polling District Information: GI 
Parish Parish of Cotham (Meeting) 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place Room At The Staunton Arms, High Street, Staunton-In-The-Vale, 

NOTTINGHAM, NG13 9PE 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities, access is available for 

disabled voters, although the path is gravelled. Cotham Church School 
Room Hall was previously used as the polling place for the Parish but 
this building has now been closed and there are no suitable places 
within the Parish. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 48 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

10 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 74 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

28 

Number of Voters in Person 46 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: GJ 
Parish Parish of Alverton (Meeting) 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place Room At The Staunton Arms, High Street, Staunton-In-The-Vale, 

NOTTINGHAM, NG13 9PE 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities, access is available for 

disabled voters, although the path is gravelled. 
There are no suitable places within the Parish. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 29 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

6 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 50 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

28 

Number of Voters in Person 22 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in GI) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 44



 
Polling District Information: GK 
Parish Parish of Kilvington (Meeting) 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place Room At The Staunton Arms, High Street, Staunton-In-The-Vale, 

NOTTINGHAM, NG13 9PE 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities, access is available for 

disabled voters, although the path is gravelled. 
There are no suitable places within the Parish. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 24 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

3 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 49 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

16 

Number of Voters in Person 33 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in GI) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: GL 
Parish Parish of Staunton-in-the-Vale (Meeting) 
County Division Balderton 
Polling Place Room At The Staunton Arms, High Street, Staunton-In-The-Vale, 

NOTTINGHAM, NG13 9PE 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities, access is available for 

disabled voters, although the path is gravelled. 
There are no suitable places within the Parish. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 15 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

3 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 30 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

9 

Number of Voters in Person 21 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in GI) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 45



District Ward Summary: Farnsfield 
Parliamentary Constituency Sherwood 
Number of Polling Districts 1 (KA) 
Number of Polling Places 1 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1431 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

154 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2500 
 
Polling District Information: KKKK5 
Parish Parish of Farnsfield 
County Division Farnsfield 
Polling Place Farnsfield Village Centre, New Hill, FARNSFIELD, NG22 8JN 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1431 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

154 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2500 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

503 

Number of Voters in Person 1997 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 46



District Ward Summary: Lowdham 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 2 (JA and JB) 
Number of Polling Places 2 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1253 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

112 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2303 
 
Polling District Information: JA 
Parish Parish of Lowdham 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Lowdham Village Hall, Main Street, LOWDHAM, NG14 7BD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1079 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

64 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2029 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

393 

Number of Voters in Person 1636 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: JB 
Parish Parish of Bulcote 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Bulcote Farm Committee Room, Bulcote, NOTTINGHAM, NG14 5HA 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities. There are access issues as 

there is a ramp in place for disabled access but there is another step 
after the ramp. 
Whilst it is recognised that this is not an ideal polling place, there are no 
other suitable alternative locations within the Parish. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 174 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

48 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 274 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

40 

Number of Voters in Person 234 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 47



District Ward Summary: Muskham 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 6 (TA, TB, TC, TD, TE and TF) 
Number of Polling Places 6 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1322 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

119 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2417 
 
Polling District Information: TA 
Parish Parish of North Muskham 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place North Muskham Rural Community Centre, Nelson Lane, NORTH 

MUSKHAM, NG23 6HD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  

North Muskham Parish Council has confirmed their approval of the 
venue. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 408 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

26 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 782 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

145 

Number of Voters in Person 637 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: TB 
Parish Parish of South Muskham 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place South Muskham Village Hall, Main Street, South Muskham, NEWARK, 

NG23 6EE 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 228 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

24 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 394 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

78 

Number of Voters in Person 316 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 48



 
Polling District Information: TC 
Parish Parish of Bathley 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Crown Inn Public House, Main Street, BATHLEY, NG23 6DA 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 125 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

17 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 209 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

44 

Number of Voters in Person 165 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: TD 
Parish Parish of Cromwell (Meeting) 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Cromwell Village Hall, Great North Road, Cromwell, NEWARK, NG23 6JE 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 127 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

15 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 225 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

39 

Number of Voters in Person 186 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: TE 
Parish Parish of Norwell 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Norwell Village Hall, NORWELL, NG23 6LF 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 216 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

18 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 415 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

56 

Number of Voters in Person 359 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 49



 
Polling District Information: TF 
Parish Parish of Caunton 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Caunton Village Room, Dean Hole C Of E School, Manor Road, Caunton, 

NEWARK, NG23 6AD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 218 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

19 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 392 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

64 

Number of Voters in Person 328 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 50



District Ward Summary: Ollerton 
Parliamentary Constituency Sherwood 
Number of Polling Districts 7 (PA, PB, PC, PD, PE, PF and PG) 
Number of Polling Places 7 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 4910 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

1091 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 7107 
 
Polling District Information: PA 
Parish Ollerton & Boughton Town – North Ward 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place St Paulinus Church Hall, Church Circle, Briar Road, OLLERTON, NG22 9SZ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1987 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

497 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2814 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

452 

Number of Voters in Person 2362 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: PB 
Parish Ollerton & Boughton Town – North Ward 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Boughton Social Club, Hallam Road, BOUGHTON, NG22 9TT 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 449 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

53 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 724 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

103 

Number of Voters in Person 621 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: PC 
Parish Ollerton & Boughton Town – North Ward 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Ollerton Town Hall, Sherwood Drive, NEW OLLERTON, NG22 9PP 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 307 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

39 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 514 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

66 

Number of Voters in Person 448 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 51



 
Polling District Information: PD 
Parish Ollerton & Boughton Town – South Ward 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Ollerton Methodist Church School Room, Forest Road, NEW OLLERTON, 

NG22 9QS 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 560 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

53 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 909 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

120 

Number of Voters in Person 789 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: PE 
Parish Ollerton & Boughton Town – South Ward 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Unit 8, Beacon Court, OLLERTON, NG22 9QL 
Polling Place comments  Used Unit 8, Beacon Court, OLLERTON, NG22 9QL following requests 

made during the 2014 review. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 688 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

285 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 740 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

128 

Number of Voters in Person 612 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation Due to issues with this polling place from the 2019 elections, we would 

welcome any suggestions for an alternative venue as it is considered 
not suitable long term due to the type of building. 

 
Polling District Information: PF 
Parish Ollerton & Boughton Town – South Ward 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Ollerton Jubilee Hall, Wellow Road, OLLERTON, NG22 9AP 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.   
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 829 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

148 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1261 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

258 

Number of Voters in Person 1003 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 52



 
Polling District Information: PG 
Parish Perlethorpe-cum-Budby (Meeting) 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Perlethorpe Village Hall, Perlethorpe, NEWARK, NG22 9EF 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

The Parish Meeting have previously confirmed that they would 
welcome the continued use of the Village Hall as the polling place. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 90 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

16 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 145 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

24 

Number of Voters in Person 121 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 53



District Ward Summary: Rainworth North & Rufford 
Parliamentary Constituency Sherwood (only exception is LD in Newark) 
Number of Polling Districts 4 (LA, LB, LC and LD) 
Number of Polling Places 4 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 3037 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

328 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 5233 
 
Polling District Information: LA 
Parish Parish of Rainworth – North Ward 
County Division Blidworth 
Polling Place Rainworth Village Hall, Kirklington Road, Rainworth, Mansfield, NG21 

0JZ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 2438 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

256 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 4129 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

705 

Number of Voters in Person 3424 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: LB 
Parish Parish of Rufford - Forest Ward 
County Division Sherwood Forest 
Polling Place Markham Suite Rufford Mill, Rufford Country Park, Rufford Lane, 

RUFFORD, NG22 9DG 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

Consultation with members in January 2019: Venue changed from 
Rufford Country Park – Abbey Site, as no longer available for us to use 
as a polling place. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 165 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

20 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 333 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

72 

Number of Voters in Person 261 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 54



 
Polling District Information: LC 
Parish Parish of Eakring 
County Division Sherwood Forest 
Polling Place Eakring Cator Hall, Kirklington Road, EAKRING, NG22 0DA 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 201 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

26 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 353 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

45 

Number of Voters in Person 308 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: LD 
Parish Parish of Wellow 
County Division Sherwood Forest 
Polling Place Wellow Memorial Hall, Maypole Green, WELLOW, NG22 0EF 
Polling Place comments  This building has some car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 233 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

26 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 418 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

56 

Number of Voters in Person 362 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 55



District Ward Summary: Rainworth South & Blidworth 
Parliamentary Constituency Sherwood 
Number of Polling Districts 5 (MA, MB, MC, MD and ME) 
Number of Polling Places 3 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 2734 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

310 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 4442 
 
Polling District Information: MA 
Parish Parish of Rainworth – South Ward 
County Division Blidworth 
Polling Place Cambridge Close Community Centre, Cambridge Close, RAINWORTH, 

NG21 0AY 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 750 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

93 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1188 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

207 

Number of Voters in Person 981 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: MB 
Parish Parish of Blidworth – North Ward 
County Division Blidworth 
Polling Place St Andrews Mission Hall, The Crescent, BLIDWORTH, NG21 0SE 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 788 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

83 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1315 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

200 

Number of Voters in Person 1115 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 56



 
Polling District Information: MC 
Parish Parish of Blidworth – South Ward 
County Division Blidworth 
Polling Place St Andrews Mission Hall, The Crescent, BLIDWORTH, NG21 0SE 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 660 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

75 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1031 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

213 

Number of Voters in Person 818 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: MD 
Parish Parish of Blidworth – South Ward 
County Division Blidworth 
Polling Place Blidworth Methodist Church, Main Street, BLIDWORTH, NG21 0QD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

The access and egress from the car park is located on a junction with a 
limited view – there have been no reported problems with the use of 
this building. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 528 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

58 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 895 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

130 

Number of Voters in Person 765 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: ME 
Parish Parish of Lindhurst 
County Division Blidworth 
Polling Place Blidworth Methodist Church, Main Street, BLIDWORTH, NG21 0QD 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

The access and egress from the car park is located on a junction with a 
limited view – there have been no reported problems with the use of 
this building. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 8 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

1 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 13 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

3 

Number of Voters in Person 10 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into one of the polling stations in MD) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 57



District Ward Summary: Southwell 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark (exceptions are SE, SF and SG in Sherwood) 
Number of Polling Districts 9 (SA, SB, SC, SD, SE, SF, SG, SH and SI) 
Number of Polling Places 7 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 4099 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

572 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 6877 
 
Polling District Information: SA 
Parish Southwell Town – East Ward 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Easthorpe Hall, Bramley Close, SOUTHWELL, NG25 0HQ 
Polling Place comments  Limited car parking and access for all electors. 

 
Southwell Town Council responded to the consultation stating that 
Easthorpe Hall is not a suitable venue due to its size and the potential 
for voters to have to queue outside. They also expressed concern about 
the cul-de-sac nature of the road which makes car parking difficult, 
especially for voters leaving, and inconvenience for local residents. 
 
As an alternative the Town Council have suggested that the Southwell 
ACF Centre is a better venue and also suggested further alternative 
venues of the Hearty Goodfellow or the Lecture Room at Southwell Fire 
Station. 
 
The RO has not received any complaints regarding the use of Easthorpe 
Hall as a polling station. The ACF Centre was previously used as a polling 
station and is a good venue but there were continual problems with 
access to the building over a gravelled driveway. The Hearty Goodfellow 
has not been considered as it is felt that it was too remote for the 
majority of electors.  The Lecture Room at Southwell Fire Station was 
considered inappropriate due to Health and Safety issues.  

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 916 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

120 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1581 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

332 

Number of Voters in Person 1249 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 58



 
Polling District Information: SB 
Parish Southwell Town – North Ward 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Kings Court Community Centre, King Street, SOUTHWELL, NG25 0EL 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1187 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

117 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1962 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

447 

Number of Voters in Person 1515 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: SC 
Parish Parish of Halloughton (Meeting) 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Holy Trinity Church, Westgate, SOUTHWELL, NG25 0LD 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 32 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

2 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 59 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

11 

Number of Voters in Person 47 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into one of the polling stations in SD) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: SD 
Parish Southwell Town – West Ward 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Holy Trinity Church, Westgate, SOUTHWELL, NG25 0LD 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1343 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

249 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 2100 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

454 

Number of Voters in Person 1646 
Number of Stations 2 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 59



 
Polling District Information: SE 
Parish Parish of Halam 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Halam Village Hall, The Turnpike, HALAM, NG22 8AE 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 174 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

21 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 338 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

51 

Number of Voters in Person 287 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: SF 
Parish Parish of Edingley 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Edingley Old School Room, Main Street, Edingley, NEWARK, NG22 8BE 
Polling Place comments  This building has some car parking facilities and access for all electors 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 171 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

14 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 342 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

60 

Number of Voters in Person 282 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: SG 
Parish Parish of Kirklington 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Kirklington Village Hall, Main Street, KIRKLINGTON, NG22 8NF 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited car parking facilities and access for all electors 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 156 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

25 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 295 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

49 

Number of Voters in Person 246 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 60



 
Polling District Information: SH 
Parish Parish of Hockerton (Meeting) 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Winkburn School, Winkburn, NEWARK, NG23 8PQ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

Consultation with members following the May 2015 election: Venue 
changed from Caravan, Spread Eagle Public House, Caunton Road, 
Hockerton, Southwell, Notts, NG25 0PL, as no longer available for us to 
use as a polling place. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 81 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

13 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 140 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

30 

Number of Voters in Person 110 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: SI 
Parish Parish of Winkburn (Meeting) 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Winkburn School, Winkburn, NEWARK, NG23 8PQ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 39 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

11 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 60 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

3 

Number of Voters in Person 57 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in SH) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 61



District Ward Summary: Sutton-on-Trent 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 11 (RA, RB, RC, RD, RE, RF, RG, RH, RI, RJ and RK) 
Number of Polling Places 8 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1448 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

200 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2512 
 
Polling District Information: RA 
Parish Parish of Sutton-on-Trent 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Sutton-On-Trent Methodist Community Centre, High Street, Sutton-On-

Trent, NEWARK, NG23 6QG 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors 

(ramp in place for disabled access). 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 672 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

110 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 1086 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

174 

Number of Voters in Person 912 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: RB 
Parish Parish of Grassthorpe (Meeting) 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Sutton-On-Trent Methodist Community Centre, High Street, Sutton-On-

Trent, NEWARK, NG23 6QG 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors 

(ramp in place for disabled access). 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 25 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

3 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 44 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

8 

Number of Voters in Person 36 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in RA) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 62



 
Polling District Information: RC 
Parish Parish of Carlton-on-Trent 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Carlton On Trent Village Hall, Carlton On Trent, NEWARK, NG23 6NW 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 123 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

26 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 187 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

36 

Number of Voters in Person 151 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: RD 
Parish Parish of Weston 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Weston Village Hall, Weston, NEWARK, NG23 6ST 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors 

(ramp in place for disabled access). 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 145 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

10 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 285 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

43 

Number of Voters in Person 242 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: RE 
Parish Parish of Ossington (Meeting) 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Ossington Village Hall, Main Street, OSSINGTON, NG23 6LJ 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 51 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

4 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 99 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

7 

Number of Voters in Person 92 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 63



 
Polling District Information: RF 
Parish Parish of Egmanton (Meeting) 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Egmanton Village Hall, Tuxford Road, Egmanton, NEWARK, NG22 0HA 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 125 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

17 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 233 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

33 

Number of Voters in Person 200 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: RG 
Parish Parish of Laxton & Moorhouse 
County Division Ollerton 
Polling Place Laxton Visitor Centre, The Dovecote Inn Car Park, Cross Hill, LAXTON, 

NG22 0SX 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors (ramp 

in place for disabled access). 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 125 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

10 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 242 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

46 

Number of Voters in Person 196 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: RH 
Parish Parish of Kneesall, Kersall & Ompton – Kersall Ward 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Bill Hemsley Community Centre, KNEESALL, NG22 0AE 
Polling Place comments  This building has car parking facilities (with additional spaces at the Old 

Church Hall if required) and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 20 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

2 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 43 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

10 

Number of Voters in Person 33 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 64



 
Polling District Information: RI 
Parish Parish of Kneesall, Kersall & Ompton – Kneesall Ward 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Bill Hemsley Community Centre, KNEESALL, NG22 0AE 
Polling Place comments  This building has car parking facilities (with additional spaces at the Old 

Church Hall if required) and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 102 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

15 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 168 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

27 

Number of Voters in Person 141 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in RH) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: RJ 
Parish Parish of Kneesall, Kersall & Ompton – Ompton Ward 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place Bill Hemsley Community Centre, KNEESALL, NG22 0AE 
Polling Place comments  This building has car parking facilities (with additional spaces at the Old 

Church Hall if required) and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 20 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

0 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 45 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

10 

Number of Voters in Person 35 
Number of Stations 0 (merged into the polling station in RH) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: RK 
Parish Parish of Maplebeck (Meeting) 
County Division Muskham & Farnsfield 
Polling Place The Village Hall In Maplebeck, Maplebeck, NEWARK, NG22 0BS 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 40 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

3 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 80 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

17 

Number of Voters in Person 63 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 65



District Ward Summary: Trent 
Parliamentary Constituency Newark 
Number of Polling Districts 7 (HA, HB, HC, HD, HE, HF and HG) 
Number of Polling Places 5 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 1262 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

112 

Electorate (as of 01/08/19) 2369 
 
Polling District Information: HA 
Parish Parish of Bleasby 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Bleasby Village Hall, Gypsy Lane, BLEASBY, NG14 7GG 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 332 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

20 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 652 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

119 

Number of Voters in Person 533 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: HB 
Parish Parish of Fiskerton-cum-Morton 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Fiskerton Chapel, Gravelly Lane, FISKERTON, NG25 0UW 
Polling Place comments  This building has on street parking only and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 353 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

24 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 687 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

148 

Number of Voters in Person 539 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 66



 
Polling District Information: HC 
Parish Parish of Rolleston 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Rolleston Village Hall, Staythorpe Road, Rolleston, NEWARK, NG23 5SG 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors.  

Rolleston Parish Council has previously confirmed their satisfaction with 
this venue. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 141 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

15 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 262 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

44 

Number of Voters in Person 218 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: HD 
Parish Parish of Upton 
County Division Southwell 
Polling Place Upton Village Hall, Church Lane, UPTON, NG23 5SR 
Polling Place comments  This building has limited parking facilities near the church and access for 

all electors (ramp in place for disabled access). 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 191 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

25 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 344 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

57 

Number of Voters in Person 287 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: HE 
Parish Parish of Averham, Kelham & Staythorpe – Averham Ward 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Manners Sutton Primary School, Newark Road, AVERHAM, NG23 5QZ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 107 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

10 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 184 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

35 

Number of Voters in Person 149 
Number of Stations 1 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 67



 
Polling District Information: HF 
Parish Parish of Averham, Kelham & Staythorpe – Staythorpe Ward 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Manners Sutton Primary School, Newark Road, AVERHAM, NG23 5QZ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 
Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 44 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

5 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 77 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

12 

Number of Voters in Person 65 
Number of Stations 0 (Merged into the polling station in HE) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 
Polling District Information: HG 
Parish Parish of Averham, Kelham & Staythorpe – Kelham Ward 
County Division Farndon & Trent 
Polling Place Manners Sutton Primary School, Newark Road, AVERHAM, NG23 5QZ 
Polling Place comments  This building has good car parking facilities and access for all electors. 

Consultation with members in May 2018: Venue changed from The 
Dome Entrance, Kelham Hall, as no longer available for us to use as a 
polling place. 

Number of properties (as at 01/08/19) 94 
Number of properties with no electors 
registered (as at 01/08/19) 

13 

Number of Electors (as of 01/08/19) 163 
Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – 
these electors would not vote in person) 

22 

Number of Voters in Person 141 
Number of Stations 0 (Merged into the polling station in HE) 
Summary/Recommendation No proposed change 
 

Agenda Page 68



 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 
14 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT - TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE STATISTICS 2019  
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the latest vehicle figures relating taxi and private hire vehicles 

collected and collated by the Department for Transport.  
 
2.0 Introduction  
 
2.1 The DfT collect figures each year from the licensing authorities in England for the numbers 

of taxis and private hire vehicles that are licensed to operate.  The figures represent 
information as at 31 March 2019.  

 
2.2  Where possible the national data has been compared to local data. 
 
2.3 Licensed Vehicles - National Picture  

The numbers of licensed vehicles has increased by 2.5% since 2018.  There are now 
291,800 licensed vehicles in England.   Of the vehicles licensed 76% are private hire vehicles 
and 24% are taxis.   
 
Wolverhampton saw an increase of 62.3 % in the numbers of licensed vehicles between 
2018 and 2019 

 
2.4  Licensed Vehicles - Local Picture 

There are 90 licensed hackney carriages in Newark and Sherwood and 30 private hire 
vehicles.  These numbers have remained relatively stable. 

 
2.5  Drivers– National Picture 

There are 362,600 licensed drivers in England.  This is an increase of 0.4% since last year.   
63% have a drivers badge for private hire vehicles, 23% have a duel badge and 15% have a 
taxi only badge. 
 
The majority of drivers were male (98%) in 2018/19.  These proportions are similar to the 
previous year.  Similar to last year, the average age of a driver was 47 years old, with 29% 
of drivers being aged under 40.  Those aged 60 or over made up 19% of drivers  

 
2.6  Drivers– Local Picture 

All Newark and Sherwood drivers are ‘dual badged’.   There are currently 175 licensed 
drivers.   In addition to this there are 139 licensed private ambulance drivers. 

 
2.7 Operators – National Picture 

There has been an increase in licensed operators of 2.8 % in the past year.  From 2009 to 
2016 there was a decline in the numbers of operators.  The past 3 years have seen a year 
on year increase.  There are now 15,500 in England.  There were 2,100 new operator 
applications in the year ending 31 March 2019.  Outside of London Operator applications 
increased by 4.6% 
 
 Agenda Page 69

Agenda Item 7



 

2.8 Operators – Local Picture 
Within Newark and Sherwood there are 22 Private Hire Operators.  This has shown a slight 
increase on last year. 

 
2.9 Fit and Proper Policies – National Picture 

Over three quarters of authorities required taxi drivers (77% or 225 out of 291) and PHV 
drivers (77% or 227 out of 293) to complete child sexual abuse (CSA) or child sexual 
exploitation (CSE) training.  These proportions have grown since the previous year. 
 
The majority of authorities required enhanced DBS (Disclosure and Barring Service) and 
barred list checks for taxi drivers (90%, 261 out of 291) and PHV drivers (89%, 262 out of 
293).  The remaining authorities required an enhanced DBS check. The proportions of 
authorities requiring enhanced DBS and barred list checks has grown from 79% (for both 
taxi and PHV drivers) in 2017 

 
All licensing authorities assess medical fitness for taxi and PHV driver applications. 96% of 
authorities base the medical fitness assessment on the DVLA Group 2 assessment.  72% of 
licensing authorities determine medical fitness of an applicant/licensee from the 
applicant/licensee’s own GP, while 10% use a licensing authority appointed GP/medical 
professional. 

 
2.9 Fit and Proper Policies – Local Picture 

All drivers applying for a licence on Newark & Sherwood are required to undertake and 
enhanced DBS check and barred list check.  With regard to medicals, all drivers are 
required to undertake medical at the Council’s chosen provider which is to a Group 2 
standard.  

 
2.10 The National Travel Survey (NTS) gathers data on personal travel behaviour across England. 

Data from the NTS can be used to analyse the users of taxis and PHVs. 
 

2.11 Taxi Passengers 
In 2018, the average person in England made 10 taxi or PHV trips and travelled 62 miles by 
taxi or PHV, an increase from 9 trips and 55 miles in 2017.  The distance travelled by taxi or 
PHV has increased by 18.9% over the last 10 years (from 53 miles in 2008), but the number 
of trips has remained broadly stable.  The average taxi trip in 2018 lasted 20 minutes, 
which has increased by 11% since 2008. 

 

2.12 Almost half (47%) of trips on taxis or PHV’s were taken for leisure purposes, the same as in 
2017 and similar to the level in 2016 (49%).  The second most common trip purpose when 
using a taxi was personal business (14% of trips). 

 

2.13 Similar to last year, most people (60%) rarely use a taxi or PHV (at most twice a year). 
Whereas around a quarter (26%) travel by taxi or PHV at least once a month and 8% of 
people travel by taxi or PHV on a weekly basis. This has been broadly stable since 2010. 

 

2.14 In 2018, on average, women made more taxi or PHV trips than men (11 trips per person 
per year compared with 10 trips per person per year respectively). Women aged 70+ made 
double the number of trips than men of this age (14 trips per person per year compared 
with 7 trips per person per year respectively).  Although women make more taxi or PHV 
trips, men generally travel further. In 2018 women travelled 56 miles per person by taxi or 
PHV, while men travelled 69 miles. 

 Agenda Page 70



 

2.15 In 2018, the majority (40%) of taxi or PHV trips were between 2 and 5 miles. This was 
almost double the proportion of trips of the same distance travelled by all modes (25%). In 
contrast, the majority (43%) of all trips were under 2 miles: just over a quarter (27%) of taxi 
or PHV trips were under 2 miles. 

 
2.16 Passenger Satisfaction 

The National Highways and Transport Public Satisfaction Survey collect public perspectives 
on, and satisfaction with, highway and transportation services on behalf of several local 
authorities to inform performance management and local transport plans. 

 
2.17 On average, in the areas surveyed in England in 2018, the overall public satisfaction with 

taxis and PHVs was 66%, slightly lower than in previous years.  Rural areas tended to have 
the lowest overall satisfaction and in 2018 the average satisfaction was 4 percentage 
points below the England average. 

 
2.18 In England, reliability satisfaction (70%) and availability satisfaction (72%) had slightly 

decreased in 2018 compared to the previous year, but were still much higher than the 
average for satisfaction with cost (52%). 

 
3.0 Proposals 
 
3.1 The Council will continue to develop its policies and procedures to ensure compliance with 

national regulation and to meet the expectations of Members and the public.  When 
looking at the national picture this authority compares well.  However, there is very little 
local information available on the satisfaction of our users. 

 
3.2 It is proposed to undertake survey of taxi and private hire users across Newark & Sherwood 

to gather data on the satisfaction with, reliability, the availability of vehicles, availability of 
wheel chair accessible vehicles and passenger satisfaction with cost. 

 
4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that: 
 

(a) Members consider the details of the Department of Transport survey on Taxis and 
private hire vehicles; and 

 
(b) a customer satisfaction survey of users be undertaken in 2020 be approved. 

 
Background Papers 
 
Department of Transport – Taxi and PHV Survey 2019  
 
For further information please contact Alan Batty on 01636 655467 
 
Matthew Finch 
Director – Communities & Environment 
 

Agenda Page 71



 

 

 
 

Forward Plan of the General Purposes Committee Decisions from 1 November 2019 to 31 October 2020 
 

This document records some of the items that will be submitted to the General Purposes Committee over the course of the next twelve months.  
 

These committee meetings are open to the press and public. 
 

Agenda papers for General Purposes Committee meetings are published on the Council’s website 5 days before the meeting http://www.newark-
sherwooddc.gov.uk/agendas/.  Any items marked confidential or exempt will not be available for public inspection. 
 

Meeting Date Subject for Decision and Brief Description Contact Officer Details 

12 March 2020 Annual Canvass Update 2019 mark.jurejko@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 

 

A
genda P

age 72

A
genda Item

 9

http://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/agendas/
http://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/agendas/
mailto:mark.jurejko@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk


 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE  
14 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
UPDATE ON PERFORMANCE AND ENFORCEMENT MATTERS (JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2019) 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform the Committee of the activity and performance of the Licensing Team and to 

provide Members with details of current ongoing enforcement issues.  
 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 A new applicant for a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers or Private Ambulance Drivers 

Licence have to undergo various checks.  These include a: Disclosure and Barring check; 
DVLA check; two references are required; Group II medical; and knowledge & ability tests.   

 
2.2 This report covers the period from 1 July to 30 September 2019 inclusive and sets out the 

range and number of licence applications during this period.  It also highlights any activity 
required as a result of the applications.   

 

Application Type New Applications 
Rec’d 

Renewal of 
Applications Rec’d 

Number 
Issued 

Comments 

Hackney Carriage/ 
Private Hire Driver 

4 16 18 2 pending 

Ambulance Drivers 
4 11 13 

1 pending 
1 withdrawn 

Hackney Carriage 
Vehicles 

8 14 22  

Private Hire Vehicles 2 5 7  

Private Ambulance 
Vehicle Licence 

2 52 54  

 
2.3 Street Collections 
 
 The table below sets out the numbers of collections undertaken within the reporting 

period of 1 July to 30 September 2019 and the charities supported.  The organisations 
undertaking the collections are required to complete a return that sets out the 80% of the 
collection that is returned to the charity.   

 

Charity Location Date Total 
amount 

collected 

% 
returned 
to charity 

Beaumond House Community 
Hospice 

Newark 08.06.19 £361.93 100% 

RNLI Newark 24.08.19 £594.75 100% 

RNLI Farnsfield  14.09.19 £130.81 100% 

Macmillan Cancer Support Southwell 21.09.19 £503.53 100% 

 
 
 Agenda Page 73

Agenda Item 10



 

2.4 House to House Collections 
 
 The table below sets out the numbers of collections undertaken within the reporting 

period of 1 July to 30 September 2019 and the charities supported.  The organisations 
undertaking the collections are required to complete a return that sets out the 80 % of the 
collection that is returned to the charity.   

 

Charity Date Total Amount 
Collected 

% Returned 
to Charity 

Child and Teenage Cancer and 
Leukaemia Foundation  

July 2019 
£93.00 100% 

Beads of Courage UK July 2019 £120.00 80% 

Cancer Support UK 15.12.19 to 30.09.19 £25.45 100% 

Just Helping Children Charity  26.07.19 £166.40 100% 

Coping with Cancer North East July 2019 £71.40 80% 

North of England Children’s 
Cancer Research  

August 2019 
£91.90 80% 

North of England Children’s 
Cancer Research 

September 2019 
£99.50 80% 

Coping with Cancer North East  August 2019 £151.83 80% 

Coping with Cancer North East September 2019 £98.35 80% 

Cancer Support UK July to September 
2019 £115.70 100% 

Sense Trading DeafBlind People  December 2018 to 
September 2019 £5,220.00 90% 

Boot Out Breast Cancer September 2018 to 
August 2019 £313.05 82% 

Breast Cancer Research  September 2019 £75.40 80% 

Just Helping Children Charity  27.09.19 £308.00 100% 

Child and Teenage Cancer and 
Leukaemia Foundation 

September 2019 
£66.00 100% 

 
2.5 Enforcement Issues 
 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Ongoing Enforcement Activity between 1 July to 30 
September 2019 
 

Location Activity Date Case Opened Action Taken So Far 

Middle Gate 
Rank 

Taxi complaint that a 
driver parked on the 
rank and left the 
vehicle 

04.07.19 Verbal advice given 

Lincoln 
Street Rank 

Taxi complaint that a 
driver cancelled a 
booking to take a fare 
from the rank 

16.07.19 LEO informed vehicle 
operator of the complaint. 
Vehicle is not licensed by 
NSDC and insufficient 
information given, so no 
further action taken 

 

Agenda Page 74



 

Lincoln 
Street rank 

Taxi complaint that a 
Wolverhampton 
licensed (Uber) 
vehicle was available 
for hire on the rank 

17.07.19 The driver of the Uber 
vehicle contacted NSDC 
alleging 2 drivers were 
intimidating him and denied 
being available for hire on 
the rank.  LEO spoke to the 
drivers in question who 
agreed to stop approaching 
other drivers on the rank. 
Complainant informed of 
the outcome. 

Lincoln 
Street rank 

Taxi inspection x1 HC 05.09.19 All in order 

Lincoln 
Street rank 

Taxi inspection x1 HC 05.09.19 All in order 

Lincoln 
Street rank 

Taxi inspection x1 HC 05.09.19 All in order 

Lincoln 
Street rank 

Taxi inspection x1 HC 05.09.19 All in order 

Hawton 
Lane, 
Newark 

Taxi complaint of 
driver urinating on 
wheel of car 

06.09.19 LEO spoke to the driver of 
the vehicle who denies 
urinating and says his car 
was left unattended on 
Hawton Lane. No further 
action taken. 

Belvoir 
Road, 
Balderton 

Complaint of 
overcharging 

10.09.19 LEO spoke to the driver who 
said the complainant had 
been abusive towards him 
in relation to the cost of the 
journey and denies 
overcharging him. LEO 
spoke to the complainant 
who was rude and would 
not listen to the 
explanation. 

Lincoln 
Street Rank 

Complaint about the 
ongoing behaviour of 
a driver 

24.09.19 LEO spoke to the 
complainant who did not 
want to pursue it at this 
time for personal reasons. 

Castle Gate 
rank, 
Newark 

Complaint of an out 
of town private hire 
vehicle parked on the 
rank. 

30.09.19 LEO contacted the vehicle’s 
operator, who has informed 
all his drivers that they are 
not to park on NSDC ranks. 

 
3.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
 That the Committee consider the contents of the report and identifies any issues it 

wishes to examine further.  
 
 

Agenda Page 75



 

For further information please contact Nicola Kellas on extension 5894 
 
Matt Finch 
Director – Communities & Environment 
 

Agenda Page 76



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 77

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 5 September 2019
	5 Food and Beverage Concessions: Amendment to Prohibited Street Designation at the Wharf: Consultation Responses
	6 Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places
	14.11.19 - Review of Polling District & Places (Appx A)
	14.11.19 - Review of Polling Districts & Places (Appx B)
	1 E_Balderton North & Coddington Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Balderton North & Coddington
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	2 F_Balderton South Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Balderton South
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	3 A_Beacon Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Beacon
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	4 N_Bilsthorpe Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Bilsthorpe
	Sherwood
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	5 Q_Boughton Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Boughton
	Sherwood
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	6 B_Bridge Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Bridge
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	7 C_Castle Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Castle
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	8 U_Collingham Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Collingham
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	9 D_Devon Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Devon
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	10 I_Dover Beck Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Dover Beck
	Newark (only exception is IG in Sherwood)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	11 O_Edwinstowe & Clipstone Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Edwinstowe & Clipstone
	Sherwood
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	12 G_Farndon & Fernwood Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Farndon & Fernwood
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	13 K_Farnsfield Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Farnsfield
	Sherwood
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	14 J_Lowdham Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Lowdham
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	15 T_Muskham Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Muskham
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	16 P_Ollerton Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Ollerton
	Sherwood
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	17 L_Rainworth North & Rufford Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Rainworth North & Rufford
	Sherwood (only exception is LD in Newark)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	18 M_Rainworth South & Blidworth Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Rainworth South & Blidworth
	Sherwood
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	19 S_Southwell Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Southwell
	Newark (exceptions are SE, SF and SG in Sherwood)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	20 R_Sutton-on-Trent Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Sutton-on-Trent
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)

	21 H_Trent Ward Information_2019
	District Ward Summary: Trent
	Newark
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)
	Number of Postal Voters (as at 01/08/19 – these electors would not vote in person)



	7 Department of Transport - Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Statistics 2019
	9 General Purposes Forward Plan (November 2019 to October 2020)
	10 Applications & Enforcement
	12 Urgency Item - Suspension of Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence

